Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
)



)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 05-0667 MC



)

ERIC F. JONES,

)




)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Eric F. Jones violated 49 CFR § 382.215.
Procedure


On May 4, 2005, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint.  Jones was served with a notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on July 1, 2005.  On January 18, 2006, we held a hearing.  Assistant Counsel Kim S. Burton represented the MHTC.  Neither Jones nor anyone representing him appeared.  The last brief was due on March 27, 2006.
Findings of Fact

1. On May 21, 2004, Jones was hired by Ralph V. Williams.

2. During June of 2004, Williams had a 1998 Mack dump truck with a gross vehicle weight rating of 80,000 pounds and a license weight of 72,000 pounds.  The truck was designated as Williams’ Unit # 330.
3. On August 9, 2004, Jones submitted a urine sample for a pre-employment controlled substance test.
4. On August 14, 2004, Jones was informed that he had tested positive for cocaine, a controlled substance.
5. On August 16, 2004, Jones drove Unit # 330 to haul four material loads from Damon Pursell Construction Co., located in Kansas City, Missouri, to a location in Liberty, Missouri.
6. On August 16, 2004, after an accident while driving Unit # 330, Jones was issued a violation notice, information and summons for:  careless driving, failure to maintain control, driving too fast for conditions, unable to stop for a red light, quickly turning right to avoid an accident, and rolling the vehicle onto its side.
7. Williams did not learn of the positive test until August 17, 2004, and he terminated Jones’ employment on that date.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the complaint.
  The MHTC has the burden of proof by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”

The MHTC and its Department of Transportation have the authority to enforce the provisions of “Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state[.]”
  A motor vehicle is “any vehicle, truck, truck-tractor, trailer, or semitrailer, motor bus or any self-propelled vehicle used upon the highways of the state in the transportation of property or passengers[.]”
  There is 
no dispute, and we conclude, that Williams’ dump truck is a motor vehicle regulated by Parts 350 to 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations.

49 CFR § 382.215 states:

No driver shall report for duty, remain on duty or perform a safety-sensitive function, if the driver tests positive or has adulterated or substituted a test specimen for controlled substances.  No employer having actual knowledge that a driver has tested positive or has adulterated or substituted a test specimen for controlled substances shall permit the driver to perform or continue to perform safety sensitive functions.

49 CFR § 382.107 provides definitions of the terms used in § 382.215:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

*   *   *

(2) Has a gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds); . . .

*   *   *
Driver means any person who operates a commercial motor vehicle.  This includes, but is not limited to:  Full time, regularly employed drivers; casual, intermittent or occasional drivers; leased drivers and independent owner-operator contractors.
*   *   *

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing work.  Safety-sensitive functions shall include:
*   *   *

(3) All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation[.]


Jones reported for duty and drove a commercial motor vehicle, a safety-sensitive function, after testing positive for cocaine, a controlled substance.  Jones violated 49 CFR 
§ 382.215.
Summary


Jones violated 49 CFR § 382.215.

SO ORDERED on May 9, 2006.



________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY



Commissioner

�Section 621.040, RSMo Supp. 2005.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri.  Section 621.040, RSMo Supp. 2005, does not specifically vest us with jurisdiction to decide whether the MHTC may seek relief in circuit court, nor does any other statute.  It transfers to us the adjudicatory subject matter of the former Division of Transportation.  In performing those adjudications, we are mindful of the procedure set forth in State v. Carroll, 620 S.W.2d 22 (Mo. App., S.D. 1981).  In that case, the Southern District held that the Division of Transportation (MHTC’s predecessor for enforcement purposes) could not file suit for penalties in circuit court until “after a proper hearing” on whether to do so.  As authority, the Southern District cited State ex rel. Cirese v. Ridge, 138 S.W. 2d 1012 (Mo. banc 1940).  In that case, the Missouri Supreme Court held that a private entity seeking injunctive relief against another private entity had an exclusive remedy in the Division of Transportation’s predecessor, the Public Service Commission.  In other words, Cirese held that parties must seek injunctive-type relief from the agency instead of circuit court, but Carroll held that the agency must hold its own hearing before filing suit for penalties in circuit court.  620 S.W.2d at 24.  In State ex rel. Missouri Div. of Transp. v. Sure-Way Transp., 884 S.W.2d 349, 353 n.5 (Mo. App., W.D. 1994), the Western District Court of Appeals questioned the Carroll procedure:





Section 390.156 does not give jurisdiction to the Division’s administrative law judge to consider the penalty action.  It requires that the Division prove its case before a circuit judge, not one of its administrative law judges. . . .  At the minimum, we question whether review by the Division’s administrative law judge must be made in an adversarial hearing.  However, because this issue is not before us, we leave that decision for another case.





Thus, the Western District indicated its willingness to depart from Carroll, but did not have the opportunity to do so.  The Western District’s reading is persuasive.  Yet, in State ex rel. Division of Transp. v. Sure-Way Transp., 948 S.W.2d 651 (Mo App., W.D. 1997),  the same court analyzed the ALJ’s hearing in the context of an attorney’s fee case and, contrary to the position that the hearing before the ALJ was unnecessary, found that the hearing was an agency proceeding and that the civil penalty action in circuit court was an “extension and second step” to that agency proceeding.  Id. at 657.  We find that Carroll still requires the MHTC to bring a contested case before us.  





	�Section 622.350, RSMo Supp. 2005.


	�Sections 390.201 and 622.550. 


	�Section 390.020(19), RSMo Supp. 2005.
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